

Justice & Youth Programs Division Residential Substance Abuse Treatment(RSAT) SFY 2026 RSAT Notice of Funding Opportunity

AWARD PERIOD

July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026

AWARD AMOUNT

\$220,069

DEADLINE

February 3, 2025 by 5:00 PM (CST)

Apply for SFY 2026 RSAT

CONTACT INFORMATION

For assistance with the requirements of this solicitation, contact:

Chris Carlile, Director of Justice Programs | 402.417.3673 | christine.carlile@nebraska.gov

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, Nebraska will provide reasonable accommodation with respect to a grant application to persons with disabilities. If you need a reasonable accommodation, please contact the Nebraska Crime Commission at 402.471.2194.

(TTY 711 or TDD 1.800.833.7352)

Contents

CONTENTS	2
INTRODUCTION	5
PURPOSE	5
PRIORITY AREAS:	5
APPLICANT ELIGIBILITY	6
PROJECT & BUDGET PERIODS	6
FUNDS AVAILABLE (ESTIMATED)	
MATCH	
APPLICATION AND FUNDING TIMELINE (TENTATIVE)	
, ,	
CORRESPONDENCE	
AMPLIFUND	
APPLICANT TRAINING AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE	7
APPLICATION REVIEW PROCESS	7
GRANT REVIEW AND SCORING	8
EVIDENCE BASED PROJECTS	9
GRANT APPLICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION REQUIREMENTS	10
System for Award Management (SAM) Registration	10
Certified Assurances	10
OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS	
Nondiscrimination (Civil Rights)	
LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP) INDIVIDUALS	
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE	
EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION	
DETERMINATIONS OF SUITABILITY TO INTERACT WITH PARTICIPATING MINORS	
SUBAWARDS	
Agency Audits & Documentation	
FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS	12
Supplanting	12
ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND RECORDS	
Equipment	
CONTRACTS	
Fully Funded Positions	14
GRANT COMMENCEMENT AND MANAGEMENT	14
Special Conditions and Implementation	14
NCC Grant Management Training (GMT)	14
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE REPORTING (AMPLIFUND)	14
Quarterly Reporting (PMT System)	15
GRANT REQUIREMENTS	15
EXAMPLE OF RSAT USES OF FUNDS	15

LIMI	ITATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF FUNDS	16
MAT	TCH REQUIREMENTS	17
APPL	LICATION SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS & DEADLINES	17
APPL	LICATION INSTRUCTIONS - SFY 2026 RSAT (VIA AMPLIFUND)	18
PR	ROGRAM INFORMATION	18
AP	PPLICANT AND CONTACT INFORMATION	18
Co	OMMUNITY / SERVICE AREA DESCRIPTION	19
	USTAINABILITY	
SFY 2	2026 RSAT REQUIRED UPLOADS & ATTACHMENTS	### Tablines ### Table ###
•	SAM REGISTRATION	21
•	Certified Assurances	21
•		
•		
•	Organizational Chart	21
•		
•	, ,	
•		
•		
•		
•		
•	Indirect Costs Calculator	22
•	OTHER ATTACHMENTS	22
SFY 2	2026 RSAT APPLICATION BUDGET	23
Tir	IMEFRAME	23
Bι	UDGET NARRATIVE AND PARAMETERS	23
Bι	UDGET CATEGORIES	
0		
0		
0		
0		
0		
0		
0		
0		
0		
		_
	obawais instructions	

SFY 2026 RSAT

- 1	NDIRECT COSTS INSTRUCTIONS	31
SFY	2026 RSAT PERFORMANCE PLAN	33
	IMEFRAME	
	TRATEGIES	
(GOALS/OBJECTIVES	33

Introduction

This solicitation is for applicants who wish to apply for competitive funds under the Nebraska Residential Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) Grant Program. The RSAT Program was created by the Violent Crime Control and Law Enforcement Act of 1994 (Public Law 103 -322) and codified at 34 U.S.C. § 10421 et. seq.

Pursuant to 34 U.S.C. § 10421 et. seq. the BJA RSAT seeks to support efforts to provide residential treatment within state correctional facilities as well as local correctional and detention facilities and to provide aftercare/recovery support services upon release into the community. The RSAT Program also supports efforts to address the overdose crisis – in confinement and re-entry – through increased access to evidence-based treatment, including medication-assisted treatment (MAT), which is the use of medication in combination with counseling and behavioral therapies.

The opioid crisis and increases in drug overdose deaths continues to devastate individuals, families and communities across the nation. Addressing these issues is a federal priority, including increasing access to evidence-based treatment such as medications for opioid use disorder (MOUD), counseling, and behavioral health therapies across all settings.

The Nebraska Crime Commission (NCC) is the State Administering Agency for RSAT. The Justice & Youth Programs Division administers the grant funds under this program. Information about NCC and its various grants and other resources can be found at https://ncc.nebraska.gov/.

Purpose

The RSAT Program assists states with developing and implementing residential substance use disorder (SUD) treatment programs within state prisons, as well as within local correctional, adult and juvenile detention facilities, in which a person is incarcerated for a period of time sufficient to permit SUD treatment.

The program funds must be used to support the provision of SUD treatment to individuals during detention or incarceration in a state or local facility. The funds may be used for recovery support and aftercare services for program participants post release.

The program encourages the establishment and maintenance of drug-free prisons and jails by developing and implementing specialized residential substance abuse treatment programs that identify and provide appropriate treatment to inmates with co-occurring mental health and substance abuse disorders or challenges. Funds may be used to implement three types of programs: residential, jail-based and aftercare.

Priority Areas:

The U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) requires that priority consideration be given to support programs in rural and tribal areas.

Applicant Eligibility

To be eligible for RSAT funding, the applicant must be one of the following:

- State Correctional Facility
- Local Correctional and Detention Facility (Adult or Juvenile)
- Tribal Correctional and Detention Facility

Per 34 U.S.C 10422©, in order to be eligible for funding under the RSAT program, individuals who participate in the substance use disorder (SUD) treatment program with assistance provided under this program be provided with aftercare services. These services must involve coordination between the correctional treatment program and other social service and rehabilitation programs such as education and job training, parole supervision, recovery or transitional housing, peer support programs, and other recovery support services.

To qualify as an aftercare program, the head of the substance use disorder treatment program must work in conjunction with state and local authorities and organizations involved in substance use disorder treatment to place program participants into community substance use disorder treatment facilities upon their release. In addition, state should coordinate these activities with any Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) – funded state or local programs that address the needs of this target population.

Project & Budget Periods

SFY 2026 RSAT has a project period of one year - July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026. Applicants should develop a budget for July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026 or no more than 12 months of operations. The project period must start on or after July 1, 2025 and end by June 30, 2026.

Projects with unspent funds at the end of each budget period will be required to deobligate those dollars.

Funds Available (Estimated)

The estimated amounts of total funds available for this solicitation that one year project period is \$220,069. RSAT requires that at least 10% of the total state award be made available to local correction and detention facilities. For the purposes of the funding announcement, at a minimum the below will be awarded:

\$24,452 Local Correction and Detention Facilities

Applicants are advised to continue to strategically plan for future program development and sustainability of programs independent of federal RSAT funding to ensure long-term success of their criminal justices programs. Projects requesting one-time expenses (such as equipment and technology needs) will need to integrate those into the first quarter of the 12-month budget to ensure that the project can fully benefit from these types of purchases.

Match

RSAT has a match requirement

If match is included in the approved award, the match amount indicated must be met, regardless of the dollar amount of federal funds utilized. Match will be reviewed and monitored at the same level as federal funds.

Application and Funding Timeline (Tentative)

Dates/times are subject to change. Updates will be posted on NCC Website. Listed times are Central Time Zone.

December 23, 2024	SFY 2026 RSAT Funding Notice of Funding Opportunity Announced	
February 3, 2025	SFY 2026 RSAT Applications due by 5:00 PM	
February 24-25, 2025	NCC Staff Review (funding recommendations)	
March 10, 2025	Crime Commission Funding Panel Review (final determination)	
March 10-11, 2025	Funding determination letters sent by NCC	
March 26, 2025	Award contingencies due to NCC	
March 27, 2025	Grant awards issued by NCC	
April 11, 2025	Grant award documents due to NCC	
July 1, 2025	Grant projects begin	

Correspondence

All application and grant correspondence will include the applicant's identified Project Point of Contact. Contacts such as the Financial Point of Contact, the Authorized Official or other applicant-designated individuals may be included in correspondence as deemed appropriate.

AmpliFund

AmpliFund is the online grant management system currently utilized by NCC. Applications must be submitted within AmpliFund at the following link. Funded projects will receive additional information and system permissions to report on project activities and expenditures once awards have been issued and approved.

https://ne.amplifund.com/Public/Opportunities/Details/38e5d74e-6ca6-4cf1-968c-ccb6ee8cbcc7

Applicant Training and Technical Assistance

- For assistance or questions regarding the RSAT Grant Program, please contact Chris Carlile, Director of Justice Programs at (402) 417-3673 or christine.carlile@nebraska.gov.
- For assistance with AmpliFund, reach out to Nebraska AmpliFund Support at (844) 735-0239 or <u>support@ne-amplifund.zendesk.com</u>. Applicants may also access resources and chat with AmpliFund Support staff through the AmpliFund Customer Support Portal at https://ne-amplifund.zendesk.com.

Application Review Process

- Projects will be reviewed as competitive applications.
- · Review will be based on the following criteria: applicant eligibility, adherence to requirements and

guidelines, ability and capacity of the proposed project to make an impact on the identified problem, availability of other resources to address the problem or need of the proposed project, cost effectiveness of the proposed project, amount of grant funds available, and the performance and/or ability of the applicant to manage a grant program.

Grant Review and Scoring

In addition to the criteria listed above, the following criteria will be considered when awarding RSAT funds: the amount of funds available; the priorities described in this solicitation; the applicant's ability to consistently spend down previous grant awards; applicant's ability to consistently meet financial and programmatic reporting requirements and deadlines; prior measurable performance/effectiveness of programs; data-based and/or evidence-informed merit of the proposal, and a commitment to sustainability plans and/or match funds, such as funding personnel fringe or partially funding the programs. All eligible applications will be evaluated and scored on the completeness and clarity of the grant application, and if the budget request is necessary, reasonable, and allowable. **Do not assume the grant reviewers know this information; provide detailed answers within each application.**

The following is a list of criteria:

Attachments:

- SAM Registration
- Certified Assurances
- Organizational Questionnaire
 - o If applicable, Single Audit or Financial Audit
- Board of Directors or Tribal Council Membership List
- Organizational Chart
- Letters of Support (3 5)
- Job Descriptions (if requesting personnel)
- Agency Policies
 - Personnel Policy (regarding Leave if requesting personnel)
 - Travel Policy (if requesting travel)
 - o Capitalization or Equipment Policy (if requesting equipment)
- Indirect Costs
 - Rate Agreement (if applicable)
 - o De Minimis Certification of Indirect Costs (if applicable)
 - Indirect Costs Calculator (if applicable)
- MOUs (if applicable)
- Other Attachments (i.e., bylaws and etc.) if applicable
- Application Signed

Section 1: Applicant Information

- Applicant provides all information requested. Appropriate signatures are included. Financial officer cannot be the same person as project director.
- Whether the project or program is within the scope of the grant.
- The applicant's eligibility.
- History of deobligation

Section 2: Program Narratives: Program narratives should be complete enough to give the reviewer a clear picture of the who, what, when, where, and how in describing what the program is and who it is serving.

- Clearly describes an identified priority area and makes a connection on how this proposed program will meet the priority area. (5 points)
- Clearly describes the proposed program and includes the proposed project's purpose and intended impact, include the geographic area served, direct services provided, and a description of the target population to be served. (10 points)
- Clearly describes how the program will address the social problem(s), including local and/or statewide Substance Use Disorder (SUD) rate information/data. (5 points)
- An explanation of how this project's funding will continue after the grant funds cease is clearly
 presented. Any sources of definite future funding are identified. If future funding is uncertain, potential
 sources for funding are stated. If this project is not to continue after the grant, a clear explanation is
 given. Strategies to cultivate future funding sources are provided. (5 points)

Section 3: Budget: Budget narratives should accurately explain project costs that are reasonable, necessary, and otherwise allowable. The budget narrative should be mathematically sound and correspond clearly with the information and figures provided in the Budget tables. The narrative should explain how the applicant estimated and calculated all costs, and how those costs are necessary to the completion of the proposed project.

- Budget tables completed correctly and fully. (5 points)
- A narrative is provided which details, matches and justifies the amounts included in the budget form clearly. (10 points)
- Rates are reasonable and consistent with that paid for similar work in other state or local governments. If the position is funded partially by the grant the % of salary is identified. Other sources of funds are clearly identified which fund the proposed program. (5 points)
- Clear description the proposed expenditures set forth in the project budget are allowable, reasonable, and cost effective. (2.5 points)
- Detailed budget breakdowns are complete, clear description of how request is necessary to meet the goals and outcomes of the program. (2.5 points)
- points)

Total Points: 50

Evidence Based Projects

Funding priority will be given to applicants who propose new initiatives in evidence/research based, data driven projects. OJP places a strong emphasis on the use of data and evidence in policy making and program development in criminal justice. OJP considers programs and practices to be evidence-based when their effectiveness has been demonstrated by causal evidence, generally obtained through one or more outcome evaluations. Causal evidence documents a relationship between an activity or intervention (including technology) and its intended outcome, including measuring the direction and size of a change, and the extent to which a change may be attributed to the activity or intervention. Causal evidence depends on the use of scientific methods to rule out, to the extent possible, alternative explanations for the documented change. The strength of causal evidence, based on the factors described above, will influence the degree to which the program or practice is considered to be evidence-based.

One resource that applicants may use to find information about evidence-based programs in criminal justice is

https://www.crimesolutions.gov

Further information about the types of programs that fit these purpose areas can be found at the NCJA and BJA websites listed below.

- NCJA: http://www.ncja.org/
- BJA: http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/BJA/
- NIC: http://nicic.gov/
- NIJ criminal justice training: http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/nij/training/welcome.htm
- http://cebcp.org/wp-content/evidence-based-policing/Sherman2015-TippingPointEBP.pdf
- http://cebcp.org/evidence-based-policing/what-works-in-policing/research-evidence-review/
- http://cebcp.org/evidence-based-policing/evidence-based-Policing-workshop/
- https://www.ncjrs.gov/pdffiles1/digitization/143709ncjrs.pdf
- http://www.courtinnovation.org/research/community-prosecution-strategies-three-examples

Grant Application and Implementation Requirements

System for Award Management (SAM) Registration

All applicants must be registered in the SAM database. This is the repository for standard information about federal financial assistance applicants, recipients, and subrecipients. **Applicants must update or renew their SAM registration annually.** Information to register or update your entity records can be accessed at http://www.sam.gov/. Applicants are highly encouraged to possible since there could be difficulties or delays with this system.

Certified Assurances

As a recipient of federal funds, the Crime Commission must sign and pass on certain grant requirements to subgrantees. The FG&P Certified Assurances addressing these requirements can be found within AmpliFund. Certified Assurances must be signed by the applicant's Authorized Official and submitted with the grant application.

Office of Civil Rights

Pursuant to 28 CFR Section 42.302, all recipients of federal funds must be in compliance with EEOP and Civil Rights requirements. All programs that receive BJA funds or are subawarded BJA funds via program agreements are required to conform to the grant program requirements. If there is a violation to this, it may result in suspension or termination of funding, until such time as the recipient is in compliance.

Nondiscrimination (Civil Rights)

Federal laws prohibit recipients of financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, or disability in funded programs or activities, not only in respect to employment practices but also in the delivery of services or benefits. Federal law also prohibits funded programs or activities from discriminating on the basis of age in the delivery of services or benefits. All subgrantees must prepare a written policy regarding how the agency will actively notify staff and program participants of nondiscrimination policies.

<u>Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Individuals</u>

In accordance with Department of Justice Guidance pertaining to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, recipients of federal assistance must take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to their programs and activities for persons with Limited English proficiency. All subgrantees must develop a written LEP plan. For more information access: http://www.lep.gov.

Equal Employment Opportunity Assurance of Compliance

Compliance is required with the following federal laws which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age or disability. These are Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; Age Discrimination Act of 1975; and the Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972. All subgrantees must prepare an Equal Opportunity Employment Plan or Certification form and a written policy regarding how the agency will actively notify staff of nondiscrimination policies. An EEO Reporting Tool is available at: https://ocr-eeop.ncjrs.gov/.

Employment Eligibility Verification

Award recipients (at any tier) must properly verify the employment eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(a)(1) and (2).

<u>Determinations of suitability to interact with participating minors</u>

Award recipients (at any tier) must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may carry out project funded activities that involve interacting with individuals under the age of 18. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment status. The details of this requirement are posted here: https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm

Subawards

Subawards, also referred to as sub-subawards or pass-through-funds, involve the passing down of federal funds to a partner agency to conduct activities that assist in the overall achievement of project outcomes. The lead agency identified in the application will issue the subaward and reimburse the partner agency for actual costs. The lead agency is also responsible for monitoring the partner agency's compliance with grant requirements. If the subaward activities will benefit individuals under 18 years of age, the applicant agrees to pass down the condition to the partner agency to determine suitability to interact with minors.

All subawards must have specific Crime Commission authorization. Each partner agency subawarded funds under this project must have a signed subaward and special conditions with the lead agency. **Prior to issuing funds to partner agencies, the lead agency must check SAM suspension or debarment.** The lead agency/subrecipient must provide a copy of the signed subaward and special conditions before receiving reimbursement for subaward expenses from the Crime Commission.

Agency Audits & Documentation

Agencies receiving federal funds from various sources totaling \$1,000,000 or more during their fiscal year are required to have a Single Audit. This single organization-wide audit shall be conducted in accordance with the

provisions of Title 2 CFR Subpart F and a copy shall be provided to the Crime Commission.

If less than \$1,000,000 is expended in one year, then the agency is exempt from federal audit requirements. However, it is highly recommended that a complete agency audit complying with Title 2 CFR Subpart F is conducted once every three years.

Authorized representatives of the Crime Commission or federal representatives shall the right to examine all records related to this grant for the purpose of audit and examinations. Types of documentation that must be maintained are detailed in the following section.

Financial Requirements

Supplanting

Supplanting is to deliberately reduce state or local funds because of the existence of federal funds. A recipient cannot use federal funds to supplant (replace) other existing funds. Any request to support a project with federal funds must address how the request is NOT supplanting of funds. The applicant must address supplanting by clearly addressing the following:

- a) How the costs were previously funded.
- b) Why the funds are no longer available.
- c) When the funds ended and/or any temporary funding agreements or arrangements.

Accounting System and Records

Commingling of funds on either a program-by-program or project-by-project basis is prohibited. The subrecipients accounting system must maintain a clear audit trail for each source of funding for each fiscal budget period and include the following:

- a) Separate accountability of receipts, obligations, expenditures of all grant funds, disbursements, and balances.
- b) Itemized records supporting all grant receipts, expenditures and match contributions in sufficient detail to show exact nature of activity.
- c) Data and information for each expenditure and match contribution with proper reference to a supporting voucher or bill properly approved.
- d) Hourly timesheets with details of project activities, signed by the employee and supervisor, to document hours personnel worked on grant related activities. Match hours must be documented in the same manner. Payroll expenses claimed for reimbursement must correspond with actual time spent on the project, as supported by timesheets.
- e) Prorated costs are required to be calculated and documented monthly by utilizing the Proration of Costs Spreadsheet. This spreadsheet must be submitted with every applicable monthly drawdown request. The NCC Grant Manager assigned to your organization will review to ensure that only the actual costs for that reporting period are reimbursed.
- f) Maintenance of payroll authorizations and vouchers.
- g) Maintenance of records supporting charges for fringe benefits.

- h) Maintenance of inventory records for equipment purchased, rented, and contributed.
- i) Maintenance of billing records for consumable supplies (i.e., paper, printing) purchased.
- j) Provisions for payment by check.
- k) Maintenance of travel records (i.e., mileage logs, gas receipts).
- I) Lease Agreements, contracts services, and purchases of equipment that adhere to established procurement processes.
 - State agencies are governed by procedures of the Department of Administrative Services (DAS), these are located at http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html
 - Counties must follow the process outlined in Nebraska statute located at http://www.nebraskalegislature.gov/laws/statutes.php?statute=23-3108&print=true
 - All other agencies must adhere to the written process of the agency. If an agency doesn't have a written policy, it should plan to follow state procedure (i.e., the DAS Procurement Process).

Equipment

Equipment (including replacements) purchased in whole or in part with RSAT funds must be maintained and the following requirements must be followed.

- a) Certification (provided in the SFY 2026 Certified Assurances, etc.) that property (i.e., equipment and supplies) purchased with RSAT funds will be used for criminal justice purposes.
- b) Maintain property records which include all of the following:
 - Description of the property
 - Serial number or other identification number
 - Source of the property Identification of the title holder
 - Acquisition date
 - Cost of the property
 - Percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the property
 - Location of the property
 - Use and condition of the property
 - Disposition data, including the date of disposal and sale price
- c) Conduct a physical inventory of the property and reconcile the results with the property records at least once every 2 years.
- d) Loss, damage, or theft:
 - A control system must be in place with adequate safeguards to prevent these occurrences.
 - Promptly and properly investigate any loss damage, or theft.
 - Establish and use adequate maintenance procedures to keep the property in good condition.
 - If authorized or required to sell the property, a proper sales procedure must be established to ensure the highest possible return.

- e) Original or replacement equipment acquired under the funded project that is no longer needed for the original project must be disposed. This is also true when equipment acquired under the funded project will be used for other activities. The following must be adhered to in equipment disposition:
 - If the item to be disposed of has a current per -unit fair market value of less than \$10,000, it may be retained, sold, or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to NCC.
 - If the item has a current per-unit fair market value of \$10,000 or more, it may be retained and sold, but NCC will have a right to a specific dollar amount.

Contracts

Contracts must adhere to established procurement processes. Any request for a noncompetitive approach for a contract of \$250,000 or more will require additional approval from the federal Office of Justice Programs.

Fully Funded Positions

Any position 100% funded through grant funds and/or match must be 100% dedicated to the grant program allowable activities.

Grant Commencement and Management

Special Conditions and Implementation

Awarded applicants must sign Special Conditions issued with the award that include requirements under federal and state laws in addition to requirements for accounting, data collection and reporting.

Funded projects must be implemented within 30 days from the start date listed on the grant award or another date specified upon issuance of the grant award. Failure to implement a project within the time frame, or a time frame agreed upon by the grant administrator, may result in the loss of grant funds. **Purchases for budgeted one-time expenses (such as equipment and technology needs) should be made in the first quarter to ensure that the project fully benefits from the purchase.**

NCC Grant Management Training (GMT)

Project Points of Contact (PPOCs) and Financial Points of Contact (FPOCs) are required to complete GMT. PPOCs and FPOCs for new projects, continuation projects whose personnel haven't attended GMT since 2021, and those with new project personnel will need to complete GMT at this time. New PPOCs and FPOCs are required to complete GMT within 120 days. For newly funded projects, the timeframe for completing GMT is the latter of 120 days after receiving the grant award or 120 days from the beginning of the project. In the event of personnel changes, new PPOCs and FPOCs are required to complete GMT within 120 days from the effective date of taking the position. All PPOCs and FPOCs are required to retake GMT every three years.

This training is also recommended (but not required) for other staff supporting the project as applicable. More information on completing GMT will be provided to funded projects.

Quarterly Financial and Performance Reporting (AmpliFund)

Quarterly reporting on project expenditures and objectives is to be completed within AmpliFund. Quarterly reporting is due on the 15th of the following month after the quarter ends. All payments will be issued on a <u>reimbursement</u> basis. Required documentation must be submitted and approved for payment to be processed.

Quarterly Reporting (PMT System)

BJA requires all funded agencies (subrecipients) to submit statistical data on a quarterly basis using the online Performance Measurement Tool (PMT) system. Agencies will be required to create internal data collection processes to collect the specific data points for quarterly reporting in the PMT system and designate a point of contact within the agency to enter the data. Additional information on PMT reporting and accessing the PMT system will be provided to funded projects.

Law enforcement agencies receiving RSAT funding must submit quarterly accountability metrics data in the PMT system related to training officers have received on use of force, racial and ethnic bias, de-escalation of conflict, and constructive engagement with the public. Grantees that fail to submit this data will have their grant funds frozen.

Grant Requirements

RSAT Program duration is to support and implement a <u>prison-based residential SUD treatment program</u> which engages incarcerated individuals for a period of between 6 and 12 months, and <u>a jail-based residential SUD</u> <u>treatment program</u> which engages incarcerated individuals for at least 3 months, are to:

- Require urinalysis and/or other proven reliable forms of drug and alcohol testing for program participants, including both periodic and random testing, and for former participants while they are in the program and under community supervision;
- o Prisons are required to establish a therapeutic community (i.e., program participants are set apart from the general population);
- o Ensure that individuals who participate in the BJA-funded substance abuse treatment program will be provided with aftercare services when they leave incarceration;
- o Aftercare services must involve coordination of the correctional facility treatment program with other human service and rehabilitation programs such as educational and job training programs, parole supervision programs, half-way house programs, and participating in self-help and peer group programs that may aid in the rehabilitation of individuals in the substance abuse treatment program;

Example of RSAT Uses of Funds

- Reentry
 - o Purchase items provided to individuals at reentry (e.g., reentry backpacks)
 - Development of Aftercare and Transitional Planning for Post-Release (including enrollment or reenrollment in public benefits and health insurance)
 - o Referrals and Continuation of Treatment Services
 - Continued Access to Medications for both MOUD and Mental Health Disorders (MHD)
- Medication-Assisted Treatment (MAT)
 - Continuation of Medication and Treatment
 - o Induction on Medication (e.g., Opioid Use Disorder/Alcohol Use Disorder and mental health medication)
- Curriculum, Screening and Assessment Tools
 - o Motivational Techniques to Encourage Treatment Engagement

- Brief Interventions Addressing Readiness to Change and Introduction to Treatment Modalities
- Immediate Assessment for Withdrawal Management Needs, follow by Withdrawal Management for those in need
- Substance Use Screening
- o Co-occurring Mental Health Screening
- Indirect Costs: Agencies that request indirect cost funding must be able to report their indirect cost rate as it applies to the agency. Indirect costs are those costs that are general or centralized expenses necessary for the overall administration of an organization. They are costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular project but are necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of the project. The cost of operating and maintaining facilities, depreciation, rent, supplies, telephone expenses, and administrative salaries are examples of the types of costs that are usually treated as indirect costs. For organizations that have an established federally approved indirect cost rate for Federal awards, "indirect costs" means those costs that are included in the organization's established indirect cost rate agreement. Such costs are generally identified with the organization's overall operations and are further described in the Office of Management and Budget Circulars 2 CFR 200.

For the purposes of this grant program, projects are permitted an allocation for administrative costs under <u>one</u> of the following options:

• <u>Federally Approved Indirect Cost Rates:</u> Agencies who have an established federally approved indirect cost rate agreement in place may include the allocation for indirect costs.

OR

• <u>De Minimis Rate</u>: Agencies who do not currently have a federally approved indirect cost rate agreement can elect to charge a de minimis rate of 15% of the modified total direct costs (MTDC) which may be used indefinitely. Costs must be consistently charged as either indirect or direct (not both).

<u>Limitations and Restrictions on Use of Funds</u>

In addition to the items listed below, further information regarding allowable and unallowable costs dressed in the <u>RSAT Program FAQs</u>.

- Aircraft
- Bonuses or Commissions
- Compensation and Travel of Federal Employees
- Construction/Renovation Projects
- Entertainment expenses and bar charges
- Finance fees for delinquent payments
- Land acquisition
- Lobbying or fundraising
- Military-type equipment
- Incentives (food or gift cards)
- Pre-paid gas/phone cards

- Vessels/Boats/Vehicles
- Weapons and Ammunition

Match Requirements

- Cash Match: Consists of financial contributions to the project that are paid from other sources (other Federal sources are not eligible as Match). Examples would be salary/wages; fringes; rent; travel; operating costs; supplies; and/or equipment that are paid with state or county dollars for the benefit of the RSAT project.
- 2. In-kind Match: Consists of donations to project activities other than cash and may include donations of expendable equipment, office supplies, workshop or classroom materials, discounted prices, workspace, or the monetary value of time contributed by professional and technical personnel and other skilled and unskilled labor if the services they provide are an integral and necessary part of the funded project. The value or depreciation value of furniture or equipment is not an eligible match.

Application Submission Requirements & Deadlines

Only electronic application submissions through the AmpliFund platform will be accepted for **SFY 2026 RSAT**. Applicants may use the following link to apply: <u>Apply for SFY 2026 RSAT</u>.

Access to the application within AmpliFund closes at the time and date of the deadline indicated on the cover page of this document. No applications or attachments will be accepted once the system closes. Failure to submit all documentation and/or information required for the proposed project will negatively affect the applicant's eligibility and award review process. If an award is granted, it may result in conditions that preclude the recipient from accessing or using award funds until conditions are satisfied.

It is recommended that the application submission process be completed 72 hours prior to the deadline to avoid delays that may result from technical difficulties. Log in to the system well in advance to ensure there are no issues. This platform requires users/organizations to register. If you already have a profile in the system, do not create a new one. If you are unsure about the status of your profile or your organization's registration, are having trouble logging in, or are encountering any other technical issues with the system, submit a ticket to the AmpliFund Help Desk to inquire (support@amplifund.zendesk.com). AmpliFund help desk hours are Monday-Friday 7am-7pm (Central Time).

Standardized grant application, instructions, and forms for the SFY 2026 RSAT Grant Program are available at https://ncc.nebraska.gov/grant-apps and in the AmpliFund platform.

Application format:

- 1. Use only the provided forms and instructions for the SFY 2026 RSAT Grant Program.
- 2. No cover letters.
- 3. Use no less than an 11-point font and adhere to space limits.
- 4. Cite all sources of data and any statistics.

Additional information in the form of appendixes is not accepted.

Under 2 C.F.R. § 200.415(b), all pass-through entities must require subrecipients of all tiers certify to

them whenever applying for funds, requesting payment, and submitting financial reports: "I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the information provided herein is true, complete, and accurate. I am aware that the provision of false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative consequences including, but not limited to violations of U.S. Code Title 18, Sections 2, 1001, 1343 and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812." Each such certification

must be maintained pursuant to the requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.334.

<u>Application Instructions - SFY 2026 RSAT (via AmpliFund)</u>

Project Information page – fill out the general application information as required by AmpliFund, including the name of the project, the federal amount requested, and the contact information for the person completing the agency's application. Please use "SFY 2026 RSAT – AGENCY NAME" for the application name.

From the menu on the Application Forms page, select <u>SFY 2026 RSAT - Application Form</u> to access the application and provide the following information. Necessary attachments that are not requested on this form may be provided under the <u>SFY 2026 RSAT - Document Uploads</u> form.

Program Information

Fill in your project title. Select the best option to complete the statement, "If awarded, these funds will..." Identify the purpose area(s) of the proposed project.

Applicant and Contact Information

The applicant must be the agency that will receive and disburse the grant funds. Select the type of agency. If your agency is a Nonprofit/501(c)(3) organization, you are required to upload your nonprofit verification and the most recent IRS Form 990 or equivalent proof of their financial statements being available online. Non-profits must also provide the waiver letter from the local law enforcement jurisdiction.

The federal Employee Identification Number (EIN) and the SAM Unique Entity Identification (UEI) number must be that of the applicant. Each applicant is required to attach a downloaded PDF copy of the applicant's SAM registration.

The application must identify a Project Point of Contact, a Financial Point of Contact, and an Authorized Official for the proposed project. Each position must be assigned to a different individual. These persons are responsible for oversight of the project and will need to complete various responsibilities, including completing certifications, throughout the course of the project. Changes in these positions will require a project change request identifying the new personnel.

- **Project Point of Contact (PPOC):** primary contact for the project, responsible for overall project management and correspondence with the Crime Commission.
- Financial Point of Contact (FPOC): responsible for financial reports and fiscal oversight of the project.
- Authorized Official (AO): individual representing the applicant agency who possesses the authority to sign contracts and agreements on behalf of the agency. The Authorized Official is typically considered to be the City Mayor, the Chair of County Board/Council, the Board President of a non-profit organization, or Designee through Tribal Resolution. If the person identified as the Authorized Official has another position, a copy of the agency policy or bylaws supporting their signing authority shall be provided.

Community / Service Area Description

Information provided should be specific to the service area identified by counties and/or cities served by the project. The demographic information requested in Tables 1 and 2 is required.

The information requested in Table 3 on marginalized and underserved populations is optional. However, this information should be provided as applicable to the proposed project and should be reflective of the local service area.

Sustainability

To address the level of stability of the proposed program beyond RSAT funding, address the applicant organization's mission and purpose; length of time in operation; numbers of agency staff and volunteers; organization structure; current scope of services or operations; agency accreditations, etc.; and recent milestones related to sustaining the agency or the agency's services. **The table providing information on agency staff and volunteers is required.**

Supplemental Funding Chart

Agencies must provide information on the entire operating budget and sources of funding for the criminal justice program in the most recently completed 12-month budget. Complete the chart to show total program income from all sources as well as other funds available to this project. Applicants who are State, County, or City entities with much larger scopes should complete information based on where the proposed project will operate from such as a division, department, unit, etc. All other applicants or lead agencies should complete information based on the agency's total budget.

Applicant Disclosure of Pending Applications

Applicants are to disclose whether they have any pending application for federally and/or state funded grants that include requests for funding to support the same project being proposed under this solicitation and will cover identical cost items outlined in the budget in the application under this solicitation. NCC seeks this information to help avoid any inappropriate duplication of funding. Applicants that have pending applications as described above are to provide the following information about pending applications submitted within the last 12 months:

- 1. Identify any pending applications for federally and/or state-funded grants that include requests for funding to support the same project being proposed under this solicitation and will cover identical cost items included in the budget for this application.
- 2. Provide the following information about pending applications submitted within the last 12 months:
 - a. Federal or state funding agency
 - b. Agency point of contact information (name, phone number, email address)
 - c. Solicitation name
 - d. Project or application name

If the applicant does not have any pending applications, indicate "None" on the application form.

Project Narrative

Address the following information for the proposed project in AmpliFund.

- 1. **Project Period** SFY 2026 RSAT will have a one year project period of July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026. All projects must start on or after July 1, 2025. All projects must end by June 30, 2026. Indicate your project start and end dates to include month, day, and year.
- **2. Project Summary** provide a concise statement (150 words or less) highlighting the major aspects of the proposed project.
- 3. **Problem Statement** a concise description of the social problem(s) the project will address. Include local crime rate information/data. If the project is a statewide effort, statewide crime rates are acceptable. Discuss any lack of available services and barriers to accessing needed services and help.

4. Description of Services

- a) Indicate the population(s) to be served.
- **b)** List the services the project will provide, along with a brief description. Explain procedures or methods if screening / assessment tools or criteria are utilized to determine eligibility for receiving services.
- **c)** Outline outreach effort the project will use and how outreach to marginalized and underserved populations will be accomplished.
- **d)** Describe any best practices that will be used for the criminal justice project.
- **e)** In addition to RSAT funded employees included in the proposed budget, describe any other individuals that will be supporting the project.
- **f)** Discuss how feedback about services received will be gathered from program participants and how this feedback will be integrated into service delivery?
- **g)** List, by agency name, up to seven other programs and/or services operating within the community or service area that contribute to the solution of the stated problem. Indicate <u>how</u> this project coordinates with those programs/services (i.e., how does the law enforcement agency coordinate with the jail, community organizations, etc.). *REQUIRED
- 5. RSAT Requirements (Project Plan) outline how the program will comply with the below:
 - a) Description of how the requirements for urinalysis and/or other proven reliable forms of drug and alcohol testing for program participants will be complied with;
 - b) Explanation of how the program will coordinate with state and/or local alcohol and drug abuse agency;
 - c) Brief description of the effectiveness and science-based nature of existing treatment service(s)/practice(s);
 - **d)** Explanation of how the funded program will address the addition of opioid abuse reduction treatment and services;
 - e) Description of how the program will ensure that individuals who participate in the RSAT program established or implemented with these federal funds will be provided with after care and community reintegration services

f) Describe how the **required prison-based residential treatment facility** will ensure that participants are set apart-in a separate facility or dedicated housing unit in a facility exclusively for use by RSAT participants-from the general correctional population

SFY 2026 RSAT Required Uploads & Attachments

All necessary application documents that support the proposed project are to be uploaded/attached to the online application within AmpliFund as either a PDF, Word or Excel file. It is suggested that documents be labeled in the following format: Agency Name-Document Name (For example: Nebraska Crime Commission-Organizational Chart). Once documents have been uploaded into AmpliFund, open the file to ensure that the correct, intended items properly loaded.

All uploaded documents must be current. Older documents must be reviewed and re-signed by the appropriate agency representatives." **Reminder**: Most of required documents need to be updated annually, at the beginning of each funding cycle or whenever there is a change in the applicant organization's structure, policies, or financial information. This ensures compliance with **2 CFR 200**, BJA, and DOJ requirements, and helps to maintain eligibility for federal funding.

- <u>SAM Registration</u> (*Required*) All applicants must provide a downloaded PDF copy of their current and active SAM registration. The legal name of the applicant organization must exactly match the name associated with the SAM registration.
- <u>Certified Assurances</u> (*Required*) -- Download the SFY 2026 Certified Assurances Template provided in AmpliFund and have it completed by the Authorized Official listed on the application. Attach the completed form to the application.
- <u>Organizational Questionnaire</u> (*Required*) -- Download the *Organizational Questionnaire* form provided in AmpliFund and have it completed by the Financial Point of Contact listed on application. Attach the completed form and any corresponding documentation to the application.
 - If answered yes on questionnaire about audit, provide a copy of the most recent Single Audit, including any audit findings, if your agency was required to undergo one due to receiving \$1,000,000 or more in federal funds during the fiscal year, in accordance with Title 2 CFR Subpart F. If your agency expended less than \$1,000,000 in federal funds, you are exempt from this requirement, though a complete agency audit is recommended every three years. The audit copy must be submitted to the Crime Commission for review.
- Board of Directors or Tribal Council Membership List (Required) Provide a complete list of Board of
 Directors or Tribal Council Membership. List should include board title, term served, professional
 position/organization, and contact information.
- Organizational Chart (Required) Provide an Organizational Chart that reflects the current leadership structure of the applicant agency.
- <u>Letters of Support</u> (3-5 Required) -- To demonstrate coordination, applicants are required to include to
 include letters of support from law enforcement agencies, criminal justice agencies, and/or community
 organizations and stakeholders.

- Letters of support should be specific to the application and the proposed project, demonstrating support of the applicant agency being vital to carrying out the proposed project.
- Letters should be on agency letterhead and signed by an agency lead, such as the Chief of Police, Sheriff, County Attorney, or Executive Director. It is acceptable for agencies that serve multiple counties to have a Letter of Support that is signed by all county agency leads.
- Letters of Support from employees or Commissioners of the Nebraska Crime Commission will not be accepted.
- o All letters must remove or redact identifying information of any crime victims.
- At least three letters are required for a complete application. No more than five letters will be accepted.
- Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Required of an agency when an application for funds includes
 an explicit non-financial collaboration with partnering organizations. The MOU provides documentation
 that demonstrates that the partnered organizations consulted and coordinated the responsibilities of their
 project activities. The MOU must be signed by all partners. Signatories must be officially authorized to
 sign on behalf of the agency (Authorized Official). Attach MOU agreements related to this project.
- Job Descriptions (Required) Attach Job Descriptions for all employees and volunteers contributing to the project as a single document.
 - Each position included in the proposed budget must have a corresponding job description.
 - Job descriptions should outline the position's Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) classification (i.e., exempt or non-exempt), necessary qualifications, primary responsibilities, and specific job duties related to the project. The percentage of time spent on overall tasks should also be indicated.
- Agency Policies Attach agency policies that are applicable to the proposed project. If no policy is submitted, the Crime Commission will default to the policy of the State of Nebraska. The following policies may be required (see SFY 2026 RSAT Application Budget section for more details).
 - Personnel Policy (regarding leave)
 - Travel Policy
 - Capitalization or Equipment Policy (Procurement Policy)
- <u>Indirect Cost Rate Agreement</u> Required for agencies that have a federally approved indirect cost rate
 agreement. Attach a copy of your agency's current Federally Approved Indirect Cost Rate Agreement.
- <u>De Minimis Certification of Indirect Costs</u> Required for all agencies that are requesting 15% de minimis. If applicable, download and attach the completed form to the application.
- <u>Indirect Costs Calculator</u> -- Required for all agencies that have a federally approved Indirect Cost Rate
 Agreement or are requesting 15% de minimis. If applicable, download and attach the completed form
 to the application.
- Other Attachments Provide any other needed attachments corresponding with your application here,

such as a copy of agency bylaws if needed to confirm the Authorized Official listed or completed NCC Grant Management Training (GMT) certificates within the last 3 years.

SFY 2026 RSAT Application Budget

<u>Timeframe</u> – Year 1 (July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026). Applicant should develop a project budget for no more than 12 months of operations.

<u>Budget Narrative and Parameters</u> – All costs must be necessary, reasonable, allowable, allocable and substantiated. Each line item in the budget must have a corresponding narrative address the information required. Items with incomplete narratives may not be awarded. Narratives should address the following:

- Justification of the line item why is the cost necessary and how will it benefit the project?
- 2. Explain how the request is not supplanting of federal funds.
- 3. Basis for the calculation explain how the total cost of the line item was determined and how the cost was prorated for the project (or provide justification for not prorating).
- 4. Identify the source of any match provided.

With the goal of efficient grant management for all parties involved, applicants are encouraged to streamline their budget as much as possible. Agencies are encouraged to be mindful of the types of expenses that generally require the most review by NCC (i.e., travel and client assistance) when developing their budget. Agencies are also encouraged to consider whether charging costs indirectly instead of directly would be beneficial.

<u>Budget Categories</u> – expenses in the following budget categories may be included with this application.

- <u>Personnel</u>: covers the wages requested for agency employees. Volunteer in-kind match is also included in this budget category. Funding requests for positions that are not on the regular payroll or are not volunteers must be classified as contractors or consultants.
 - Salaries cannot exceed those normally paid for comparable positions in the community and/or unit of government. Salary increases requested under the grant must be consistent with agency policy and positions with other funding. Wages claimed for reimbursement under the grant cannot exceed 1.5% over the budgeted salary levels without a budget revision.
 - I.E.: Breakdown of wages for this position: Hours x hourly rate = (total)
- <u>Fringe Benefits</u>: covers the corresponding fringe benefits for positions included under Personnel. Fringes must be equitably allocated to all funding sources according to the actual payroll percentages. Fringe benefits should be based in the employer's share only since the employee's share is to be withheld from their wages.
 - Only <u>basic</u> fringe benefits are considered allowable by the Crime Commission. This includes insurance benefits offered by the agency (health, life, professional liability, etc.), FICA, unemployment insurance, workers compensation, costs of leave, and pension/retirement. Cafeteria or opt out plans, benefits, or incentives are not considered allowable expenses and will not be reimbursed. This applies even if the

agency has optional fringe benefits approved under Section 125 of the IRS Internal Regulations.

I.E: Breakdown of employers cost of basic fringe benefits for this position pro-rated based on the amount of grant dollars requested.

- a. FICA:
- b. Retirement:
- c. Insurance:

Other (such as LTD, LIFE, ADD, etc.): Fringe Type: Amount:

The cost of fringe benefits in the form of regular compensation paid to employees during periods of authorized absences from the job, such as for annual leave, family-related leave, sick leave, holidays, court leave, military leave, administrative leave, and other similar benefits are allowable if the following criteria is met:

- 1. The leave is provided under established written leave policies.
- 2. The costs are equitably allocated to all related activities, including federal awards.
- The accounting basis (cost or accrual) utilized for claiming each type of leave is consistently followed.

Leave time will not be included in the budget for fringe benefits since it's included in the normal working hours budgeted under personnel. However, the types of leave offered as fringe benefits must be identified in the narrative. A copy of the agency leave policy will also need to be provided.

Travel: necessary travel expenses for the project may be requested. Expenses budgeted cannot exceed current GSA rates, which can be found at https://www.gsa.gov/. Travel expenses may be claimed according to the agency's written travel policy or the State of Nebraska policy, which can be found at Nebraska policy, which can be a supplied at Nebraska policy, which can be a supplied at <a

The travel policy utilized will need to be identified in the budget narrative. If applicable, a copy of the agency travel policy will need to be provided. Note that it continues to be FG&P policy that M&I expenses for day travel with no overnight stay are not allowable, regardless of whether the agency's travel policy allows it.

- 1. Position Traveling: If an agency has more than one funded program, also include program type.
- 2. Travel Purpose: examples include personal vehicle to serve victims, conference, etc.
- 3. Meals: Meal reimbursement must follow <u>NE DAS policy</u> and utilize the NE DAS <u>expense</u> <u>reimbursement form</u> to calculate total expense.
- 4. Lodging: Per Diem Lookup
- Equipment: items with a useful life of more than one year and a per-unit acquisition cost exceeding the capitalization threshold are considered equipment. Agencies may use their own capitalization policy for classification of equipment and supplies, but only if the capitalization threshold is less than the federal and state policy threshold of \$10,000. Items under \$10,000 are considered supplies per state policy, although lower-cost items may be considered equipment per agency policy.

Purchases of equipment must adhere to established procurement processes and equipment must be managed in accordance with Federal Property and Equipment guidelines. Equipment procurement and management standards are outlined in the Financial Requirements section of this document. Refer to grant program guidelines for allowable items. Items requiring bids will not be funded absent a showing that bids were obtained as required by law, rules, or regulations.

Provide the following: Program equipment requests are requests that will assist in the necessary functions of the program.

- a. List each item requested and purpose.
- b. Planned Purchase date of equipment being replaced
- c. Include bids or quotes if items are required for bids.

Entities must follow their written procurement process and if a process is not in place, then the entity must use Nebraska's procurement process governed by DAS.

- Supplies: includes items or materials which are expendable or consumed during the project (i.e., office supplies, postage, computers, training materials, books, etc.). The agency's capitalization policy will determine whether higher-cost items should be classified as equipment or supplies. For purchases of items that are considered substantial (i.e., computers, printers, appliances, furniture), but do not meet the threshold for procurement requirements, agencies should follow "best practices" for determining reasonable costs. In these cases, at least three comparable price listings should be obtained and retained in agency records.
- Procurement Contracts: contracts are utilized to purchase specific services and are based on set fees. Contracts, including those with consultants, must adhere to established and standardized procurement processes. Funded contracts must have an open and fair selection process that is void of conflicts of interest, set reasonable pay rates, and offer specific verifiable work products or services. Contract rates must be reasonable and consistent with those paid for similar services in the marketplace and align with the work proposed.
 - Any request for a noncompetitive approach for a contract of \$250,000 or more will require federal approval from the Office of Justice Programs.
 - Fees for individual consultant services are subject to the DOJ Consultant Rate prior approval
 threshold of \$81.25/hour or \$650/day (8-hour day). Rates requested for reimbursement cannot
 exceed this threshold without prior written approval, which would require additional justification.
 This threshold should not be considered the maximum limit for all consultants though. The rate
 should be established according to skills, qualifications, and similar services in the marketplace.
 - Contractor consultant travel expenses budgeted cannot exceed current GSA rates, which can be found at https://www.gsa.gov/.
- Subawards: involve the passing down of federal funds to a partner agency to conduct activities that assist in the overall achievement of project outcomes. The lead agency identified in the application will issue the subaward and reimburse the partner agency for actual costs.

All subawards must have specific Crime Commission authorization. Each partner agency subawarded funds under this project must have a signed subaward and special conditions with the subrecipient. The subrecipient must provide a copy of the signed subaward and special conditions before receiving reimbursement for subaward expenses from the Crime Commission.

- Other Costs: applicable "other" expenses necessary for the project may be requested in this category.
 Examples of costs in this category include:
 - Rent and utilities
 - Copying and printing
 - Janitorial expenses
 - Agency insurance
 - Training registration fees
 - Programming funds (i.e., group activities)
 - Single Audit

The cost of an audit is <u>only</u> allowable if the agency is required to complete a Single Audit. Cost of a Single Audit must be prorated according to the total federal funds received by the agency.

I.E.: XYZ conference \$150 registration x 2 staff = \$300
Training Registration Fees 5 x \$300/person = \$1,500
Client Assistance 10 clients @ \$200.00 = \$2,000
Agency Insurance 12 mths @ \$100.00 = \$1,200
Copying & Printing 12 mths x \$60 = \$120
Rent 12 mths @ \$1000.00 = \$12,000

- o <u>Indirect Costs</u>: costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular project but are necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of the project. The cost of operating and maintaining facilities, depreciation, rent, supplies, telephone expenses, and administrative salaries are examples of indirect costs. Agencies may request funding for indirect costs by either establishment of a federally approved indirect cost rate agreement or by a "de minimis" rate, if eligible. The Crime Commission encourages agencies to use the 15% de minimis rate if eligible and charging costs indirectly would benefit your programming addition to the information provided in the budget, agencies requesting indirect costs must provide the following supplemental documentation. These documents will need to be updated and resubmitted periodically over the course of the project.
- 1. Support for Indirect Costs
 - Agencies with a federally approved indirect cost rate must provide a copy of the current federal agreement, which indicates the status of the requested rate (provisional, fixed, or final).
 - Agencies requesting de minimis indirect costs must provide a signed copy of the De Minimis Certification form (template provided within AmpliFund application).
- 2. Indirect Costs Calculator (template provided within AmpliFund application).

Submitting the SFY 2026 Budget in AmpliFund

Applicants are encouraged to develop the project budget and corresponding narratives prior to entering the information into AmpliFund, so that the information can be easily copied and updated outside of the system. Applicants can refer to the AmpliFund user guides for specific instructions on submitting the budget within AmpliFund. **Please use whole numbers.** See the following sections for details on what information must be included in the budget.

Personnel Instructions

- 1. Enter the position title as the title for the budget line item. Each position must be budgeted separately, so repeat steps as needed for additional line items.
- 2. Enter the total wage amount requested for the position.
- 3. Include the following narrative information supporting the request in the text box.
 - a. Identify whether each position is a new or existing position and the staff member's name (if known). New positions are those that result in an increase to the agency's overall FTEs while existing positions do not.
 - i. New position: explain the necessity for the new position.
 - ii. Existing position: explain how the position was funded previously and address supplanting.
 - b. Outline the job duties or responsibilities for each position and indicate their relevance to the project.
 - c. Identify the salary level requested in the budget.
 - For existing positions, identify the current salary level and justify any salary adjustments or raises. Clarify the process used by the agency for determining salary increases and who provides approval.
 - d. Indicate the total work week hours for each position and the percentage of time allocated or devoted to the project. Funding can only support the percentage of personnel time that is devoted to the RSAT project.
 - e. Provide the calculation corresponding with the RSAT wages requested (i.e., annual salary x RSAT devotion OR hourly rate of pay x annual hours worked x RSAT devotion = amount requested).
 - f. Identify other sources of funding for the position (if applicable) and the source of any match provided.
- 4. A job description for each position will need to be provided as an attachment.

Fringe Benefits Instructions

- 1. Enter the position title as the title for the budget line item. Fringes must be budgeted separately for each position, so repeat steps as needed for additional line items.
- 2. Enter the total fringe amount requested for the position.
 - a. Note that all individual fringes budgeted for a position should be consolidated under a single line item. A fringe benefit such as worker's compensation that is prorated at the agency level instead of the individual level may be entered as a separate line item though.

- 3. Include the following narrative information supporting the request in the text box.
 - a. List the staff member's name (if known) and identify each of the fringe benefits budgeted for the position.
 - i. Clarify if there are any new fringe benefits offered.
 - ii. Explain how existing fringe benefits were funded previously and address supplanting.
 - b. Provide the calculation corresponding with the total budget request. This should be a lump sum percentage of the RSAT devoted salary for fringes (i.e., salary request under RSAT x total fringe percentage = fringe benefits requested). To calculate the total percentage of all fringe benefits:
 - i. Add up the dollar amount of all fringe benefits (total fringes). Provide the breakdown of the fringes and corresponding amounts included (i.e., FICA = annual salary x 7.65%, health insurance = agency's share of monthly premium x 12).
 - ii. Divide the total fringes by the total salary for the position. Round the percentage to no more than 2 decimal points. See example calculation provided below.

Position 1: annual salary is \$40,000, of which \$30,000 (75%) is devoted to RSAT.

Total fringes: \$5,487FICA - $$40,000 \times 7.65\% = $3,060$ IRA - $$40,000 \times 3\% = $1,200$ Unemployment - 0.3% on first \$9,000 in wages = \$27 Health insurance - \$100/month for agency share $\times 12 = $1,200$

Total percentage of fringe benefits: \$5,487 / \$40,000 = 13.72%Fringe benefits requested under RSAT: $$30,000 \times 13.72\% = $4,116$

- c. Identify the other funding sources for fringes (if applicable) and the source of any match provided.
- d. Identify the types of leave offered by the agency.
- 4. A copy of the agency's personnel policy detailing types of leave offered will need to be provided as an attachment.

Travel Instructions

- 1. Enter the specific travel expenses as the title for the budget line item. Different travel expenses may need to be budgeted separately, so repeat steps as needed for additional line items.
 - a. List expenses by purpose (i.e., training, conference, daily travel) and by type.
 - b. Do not lump costs together. For example, baggage fees for air travel need separated from the cost of the airline ticket.
 - Example titles for budget line items: Local Mileage; In State Training Mileage; In State Training Meals; National Training 1 Airfare; National Training 1 Baggage Fees; National Training 1 Taxi.
- 2. Enter the amount requested for the specific travel expense.
- 3. Include the following narrative information supporting the request in the text box.

- a. Note if the travel is local, in-state, or out-of-state and the departure and destination points. If the destination for out of state travel is unknown, indicate that prior approval from NCC will be requested.
- b. Explain the purpose of travel, the position(s) traveling, and the benefit or necessity of the travel for the project.
- c. Identify the travel policy followed (i.e., agency policy or State of Nebraska policy).
- d. Address supplanting. For recurring travel expenses such as local mileage, explain how the expenses were previously funded.
- e. Include the allocation and detailed calculation of the specific travel expense. Explain how the total and budgeted amounts were determined (i.e., based on prior year's costs) and any applicable basis for prorating.
- f. Identify the other funding sources for travel (if applicable) and the source of any match provided.
- 4. If applicable, a copy of the agency's travel policy should be provided as an attachment.

Equipment Instructions

- 1. Enter the specific equipment as the title for the budget line item. Different equipment expenses may need to be budgeted separately, so repeat steps as needed for additional line items.
- 2. Enter the total amount requested for the equipment.
- 3. Include the following narrative information supporting the request in the text box.
 - a. Describe all equipment expenses. Explain how each item is relevant and necessary to the project. If applicable, identify who will be using the equipment or benefitting from it.
 - b. Identify the capitalization threshold and whether agency or state policy is followed. If agency equipment policy is followed, please provide a copy of the policy as an attachment.
 - c. Summarize the bidding process to be used.
 - d. Address supplanting. For existing or recurring equipment expenses, explain how the expenses were previously funded.
 - e. Include the allocation and detailed calculation of the equipment. Explain how the total and budgeted amounts were determined and any applicable basis for prorating.
 - f. Identify the other funding sources for the equipment (if applicable) and the source of any match provided.

Supplies Instructions

- 1. Enter the type of supply as the title for the budget line item. Different types of supplies may need to be budgeted separately, so repeat steps as needed for additional line items.
 - a. Everyday costs such as office supplies do not have to be itemized separately in the budget and do not need to be broken into separate line items such as pens, papers, etc. Items included must be described in the narrative though.
 - b. Higher cost items that are considered substantial (i.e., computers, printers, appliances, furniture)

should be budgeted under separate line items.

- 2. Enter the total amount requested for the type of supply.
- 3. Include the following narrative information supporting the request in the text box.
 - a. Describe all supply expenses and explain why they are necessary for the project. If a certain type of supplies is budgeted under a single line item, describe all the items included.
 - b. Address supplanting. Explain how existing or recurring supply expenses were previously funded.
 - c. Include the allocation and detailed calculation of the supplies. Explain how the total and budgeted amounts were determined (i.e., based on prior year's actual costs) and any applicable basis for prorating.
 - d. Identify the other funding sources for the type of supply (if applicable) and the source of any match provided.

Procurement Contracts Instructions

- 1. Enter the type of contract as the title for each budget line item. Different contracts may need to be budgeted separately, so repeat steps as needed for additional line items.
- 2. Enter the total amount requested for the contract.
- 3. Include the following narrative information supporting the request in the text box.
 - a. The expected deliverables or product/services that the consultant or contract will provide. Explain why the contract is necessary for the project.
 - b. Identify who the consultant or contractor is and how they are associated with the agency. Provide a description of the selection process to verify that the procurement process is fair, equitable, and free from conflicts of interest and/or personal gain by any entity or representative within the organization.
 - c. Address supplanting. Explain how existing or recurring contract expenses were previously funded.
 - d. Include the allocation and detailed calculation of each line item. Explain how the total and budgeted amounts were determined (i.e., 100 hours x \$75/hour = \$7,500) and any applicable basis for prorating. Provide justification or an explanation of the requested rate.
 - e. Identify the other funding sources for the contract (if applicable) and the source of any match provided.

Subawards Instructions

- 1. Enter the partner agency's name as the title for each budget line item. Different subawards must be budgeted separately, so repeat steps as needed for additional line items.
- 2. Enter the total amount requested for the subaward.
- 3. Include the following narrative information supporting the request in the text box.
 - a. Explain the necessity or purpose of the subaward and the partner agency's role.
 - b. Expected deliverables or services that the subaward will provide and how they'll impact the project.

- c. Address supplanting. Explain how existing or recurring subaward expenses were previously funded.
- d. Provide a summary of the subaward budget and an itemized breakdown of requested expenses. Include the allocation and detailed calculation of each line item and describe the specific duties for each position requested.
- e. Identify the other funding sources for the subaward (if applicable) and the source of any match provided.

Other Costs Instructions

- 1. Enter the specific type of cost as the title for each budget line item. Different costs may need to be budgeted separately, so repeat steps as needed for additional line items.
- 2. Enter the total amount requested.
- 3. Include the following narrative information supporting the request in the text box.
 - a. Describe the expense and the necessity to the project.
 - b. Address supplanting. Explain how existing or recurring costs were previously funded.
 - c. Include the allocation and detailed calculation of each line item. Explain how the total and budgeted amounts were determined (i.e., based on prior year's actual costs) and any applicable basis for prorating.
 - d. Identify the other funding sources for the type of cost (if applicable) and the source of any match provided.

Indirect Costs Instructions

- 1. Add a line item for indirect costs.
- 2. Enter the total amount requested.
- 3. Include the following narrative information supporting the request in the text box.
 - a. Explain how the indirect cost rate was determined (federally approved or 15% de minimis). Indicate which federal rate is being used (provisional, fixed, or final) and the expiration date.
 - b. If the agency elects to apply a lower indirect cost rate due to budget constraints or other reasons, an explanation or justification for determining the lower rate should be included.
 - c. Identify the other funding sources for the indirect costs (if applicable) and the source of any match provided.
- 4. The **Indirect Costs Calculator** form must be completed according to your agency's budget and submitted with either an **Indirect Cost Rate Agreement** or **De Minimis Certification of Indirect Costs**. This paperwork will need to be periodically updated and resubmitted over the course of the project. An example for completing the Indirect Costs Calculator form using the Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC) indirect cost distribution base is included below.

Budgeted Direct Costs

The amounts listed here must match the current or requested grant budget. See chart on page 2 of form.

Budget Category	Total Amount	Budget Details / Notes
Personnel	\$250,000	Staff salaries (Advocate, Case Manager)
Fringe Benefits	\$50,000	Staff fringes (Advocate, Case Manager)
Travel	\$12,000	Local mileage
Supplies	\$8,000	Office supplies
Equipment	\$5,000	New server
Procurement Contracts	\$60,000	Legal contract = \$45,000; Therapy = \$15,000
Subawards	\$60,000	Partner agency subaward = \$60,000
Other Costs	\$30,000	Rental costs = \$10,000; other misc. costs = \$20,000
Total Direct Costs	\$475,000	

Budgeted Indirect Costs & Total Budget

The distribution base and rate referenced here for indirect costs must match corresponding documentation. See chart on page 4 of form and additional information included on page 3 of form.

	Total Amount	Budget Details / Notes
Total Direct Costs	\$475,000	
Direct Costs Excluded from	\$70,000	Excluded from MTDC:
Indirect Cost Distribution Base		\$5,000 of equipment; \$20,000 for legal contract in excess of \$25,000; \$35,000 for partner agency subaward in excess of \$25,000; and \$10,000 in rental costs
Indirect Cost Distribution Base	\$405,000	\$475,000 - \$70,000
Indirect Cost Rate %	15%	De minimis
Total Indirect Costs	\$60,750	\$405,000 x 15%
Total Federal Budget	\$535,750	\$475,000 direct + \$60,750 indirect

SFY 2026 RSAT Performance Plan

The applicant's proposed goals and objectives for the project are to be entered into the AmpliFund Performance Plan Template. Applicants can refer to the AmpliFund user guides for specific instructions on submitting the goals/objectives within AmpliFund. Objectives should directly correlate to the project's proposed budget and the project services outlined in the Project Narrative.

<u>Timeframe</u> – Year 1 (July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026). Applicant should develop a project goals and objectives for no more than 12 months of operations. These will guide the project through Year 1 of a two-year plan. In developing Year 1, applicants should take into consideration what the objectives will look like for Year 2. Projects will have the opportunity to adjust objectives for Year 2, however, overall goals should be consistent with Year 1.

<u>Strategies</u> – Broad statements summarizing the overarching purpose(s) of the project. The number of strategies will depend on the size of the proposed project. Applicants must enter their own measurable goals/objectives that will advance the project toward achieving the overarching strategy.

<u>Goals/Objectives</u> – Each strategy should have 2-5 goals or objectives that clearly state what is planned for the project's activities and achievements. Goals must be measurable and state **what will be done** utilizing the grant funds, **what will be measured**, and within **what timeframe**. Goals will need to have a goal type identified for the goal to be properly reported on and tracked. The goal types are as follows:

- 1. **Narrative**: allows you to set a goal and track the progress of the goal by writing out narratives.
- 2. **Numeric**: allows you to set a planned number to be achieved. You will be able to track the actual numbers achieved vs. the goal's planned number.
- 3. **Percent Achieved**: this goal type allows you to set a goal percentage that you hope to achieve. You will be able to track the actual percentage achieved vs. the goal's planned percentage.

Measurable performance indicators **increase**, **decrease**, or **maintain** something and are not activity statements such as *to provide* (*event*), *to train*, *retain employees* or *to establish*. For example, if the *strategy* is for "victims and survivors to know more ways to gain personal safety and wellbeing," then the *goal/objective* could be the number of victims self-reporting increased awareness of their surroundings, or the number of safety plans developed.

If percentage changes are referenced in objectives, actual numbers will also need to be included. For example, if the goal is to "increase numbers served by 25%, it should be stated as "to increase numbers served by 25%, from 80 to 100". For ease of reporting, this performance measure should be entered as a "number" type of measure with 100 as the planned goal.

When developing goals/objectives, consider the following:

- How will the victims to be served benefit?
- By receiving this service, what will be the outcome for victims?

If the funding proposal increases the number of staff, the goals/objectives should indicate how the increased staff will improve outcomes for victims served. Examples: victims/survivors that know their rights will increase by 25%; victims/survivors that have supports within the community at discharge will increase by 10%.